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From: "Delmar, Richard K."
Date: Dec 19, 2013 12:03:08 PM
Subject: Your FOIA request to Treasury OIG
This responds to your 12/3/13 FOIA request for copies of "each Department of the
Treasury Inspector General final report/closing memo/referral letter, etc. (e.g., of an
investigation or audit or management review or inspection of any other project) done
for a different agency (i.e., an agency other than the Treasury Dept.)"
You excepted from the scope of your request any records created before January 1,
2005, any records already on our web site, and peer review documents. The
Department has docketed this request with the tracking number 2013-12-051.
I have reviewed our record systems, and have discussed your request with responsible
supervisors in our Office of Audit (OA) and Office of Investigation (OI). I have also
reviewed Office of Counsel (OC) files.
Nothing produced by OA or OI is responsive to your request.
But there are reports made by OC that are responsive. Two such reports, involving
responses to information requests made by Senator Grassley, are on our web site.
One involved the development of an IRS tax notice, and the other involved the process
by which certain FOIA requests were reviewed within the Department.
The other two reports, which are not on our web site, are attached. The first was a
response to another Senator Grassley inquiry, involving AIG's payment of certain
employees. That report was in the form of a letter I sent to a member of Senator
Grassley's staff. The second was the IG's response to Rep. Jo Ann Emerson's inquiry
about a Treasury social media publication, and its possible violation of Federal antilobbying laws.
With the provision of those two documents, I believe I have fully complied with your
request, and provided all responsive records created and maintained by the Treasury
OIG. If you disagree with this resolution of your FOIA request, you can appeal the
matter pursuant to 5 U.S.C. section 552(a)(6)(A)(i). Pursuant to the Department's FOIA
appeal process set forth in 31 C.F.R. section 1.5(i), an appeal must be submitted
within 35 days from the date of this response to your request, signed by you and
addressed to: Freedom of Information Act Appeal, DO, Disclosure Services,
Department of the Treasury, Washington, D.C. 20020. The appeal should reasonably
describe your basis for believing that Treasury OIG possesses records to which
access has been wrongly denied, or that we have otherwise violated applicable FOIA
law or policy.
Rich Delmar
Counsel to the Inspector General
Department of the Treasury
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House of Representatives
Washington,
20515-6015
Dear Chairwoman Emerson.
By letter dated July 19, 2012, you asked that I look into the Treasury Department's
media outreach entitled "Penny Wise and Pound Foolish," which commented on
pending appropriations for the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
Commodities Futures Trading Commission. You provided a series of specific questions
and issues to be addressed relating to this outreach, and whether it conformed to, or
violated, the anti-lobbying provisions of 18 U.S.C. Section 1913 and Sections 716 and
719 of the 2012 Appropriations Act.
I tasked my Counsel, Rich Delmar, to conduct this inquiry. He met with several officials
in the Treasury Department, and reviewed records and applicable law and other
guidance. His report (enclosed) presents the results of his inquiry, research, and
analysis. We believe that the outreach in question did not violate the anti-lobbying
provisions. We also note that the Department's process for ensuring legal review of
such outreach efforts is less formal and structured than might be expected.
If you have questions about our report, please call me on 202-622-1090, or your staff
can contact Mr. Delmar on 202-927-3973 or delmarr@oig.treas.gov.

Sincerely,

Eric M. Thorson
Inspector General

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20220
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September 17, 2012
MEMORANDUM FOR THE INSPECTOR GENERAL
FROM:

Rich Delmar
Counsel

SUBJECT

Report for Rep. Emerson Re Treasury Public Outreach
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BACKGROUND
By letter dated July 19, 2012 Representative Jo Ann Emerson, Chair of the
Subcommittee on Financial Services and General Government of the House
Appropriations Committee asked you to conduct an inquiry regarding the Department's
July 16, 2012 website posting entitled "Penny Wise and Pound Foolish," which
expressed the Department's views on funding levels for two non-Treasury agencies, the
Securities and Exchange Commission {SEC) and the Commodity Futures Trading
Commission (CFTC}. You replied on July 20, 2012 stating that you were directing
Counsel to carry out this inquiry.
Ms. Emerson expressed concern that the Department's outreach may have violated
statutory prohibitions and limitations on using appropriated funds to lobby Congress and
otherwise advocate for legislative action. She presented a list of specific questions
about process, coordination and review within the Department.
I have reviewed the statutory provisions, as well as analyses and interpretations of
them. I also interviewed Departmental officials with knowledge of and responsibility for
the posting, and adherence to the legal constraints. Based on this review and activity, I
conclude that the outreach at issue does not violate the applicable law. Additionally,
there 1s a process in place, more informal than might be expected, that appears to
satis.fa.ctorily vet outreach materials to assure that they do not violate the statutory
prov1s1ons.
The applicable statutory regime consists of a Federal criminal provision, and a
restriction incorporated in the current appropriation act. The criminal provision, 18
U.S.C. § 1913 Lobbying with appropriated moneys, states:
No part of the money appropriated by any enactment of Congress shall, in the
absence of express authorization by Congress, be used directly or indirectly to
pay for any personal service, advertisement, telegram, telephone, letter, printed
or written matter, or other device, intended or designed to influence in any
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INQUIRY PROCESS
I obtained information and records from the following Treasury officials:
Assistant Secretary for Public Affairs Jenni Lecompte;
Assistant Secretary for Legislative Affairs Alistair Fitzpayne and his deputy, Lisa Pena;
Deputy Assistant Secretary for the Financial Stability Oversight Council Amais Gerety;
Assistant General Counsel Rochelle Granat and her deputy Brian Sonfield, and
Treasury OGC attorney Steve Laughton.
From my interviews of them and review of emails and other records they provided, I am
setting out answers below to the questions posed by Chairwoman Emerson. After that
presentation, I will set out my conclusions and observations about this event, and the
process at issue here.
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The questions posed by the Chairwoman are:
Does the Department ofTreasury have a well-documented and long-standing history of
reviewing and critiquing the funding levels of non-Treasury agencies in appropriations
legislation pending before Congress?
Both Ms.
and Mr. Fitzpayne, the heads, respectively, of the
Department's
of Public Affairs and Legislative Affairs, stated that in
matters related to financial regulation, the Department does have a policy and
practice on commenting on issues that can affect the strength and security of
markets and financial institutions. This is particularly true regarding adequate
funding of
involved in Dodd-Frank implementation and regulation of
financial
Mr. Gerety, the Deputy Assistant Secretary responsible for administration and
support of the Financial Stability Oversight Council (FSOC) agreed.
If so, which non-Treasury agencies does the Department review either regularly or
occasionally?
As discussed above, the three officials indicated that to their knowledge, the
review related just to agencies involved in financial regulation, that were
Treasury's partners in Dodd-Frank implementation.
How does the Department decide which non-Treasury agencies to review and not
review?
As discussed above, the decision-making focusses on how the other agencies
are connected to a Treasury responsibility or core interest; in this case, financial
regulation and Dodd-Frank implementation.
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In general, she stated, the clearance of content for distribution via social media
channels is the same for other content disseminated by Public Affairs - press
releases, fact sheets, speech text, etc. which includes review by all relevant
internal offices, including the Office of the General Counsel.
If so, were they followed in this particular instance on July 16?
Ms. Lecompte said that the procedures described above were followed. The
"Penny Wise and Pound Foolish" infographic was reviewed by relevant offices
within the Department, and its content was checked for accuracy with the SEC
and CFTC. OGC reviewed the product to assure that it did not cross any lines
into improper lobbying, violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1913, or violations of relevant
restrictions contained in appropriations acts
What Department offices are responsible for writing and enforcing these policies and
procedures?
Ms. Lecompte stated that Public Affairs has responsibility for ensuring that all
relevant offices have reviewed the material that is publically released. Her office
looks to the Office of the General Counsel to ensure content is compliant with all
laws and ethics policies.
Do the policies and procedures incorporate guidance on how to avoid violating 18
U.S.C. 1913 and sections 716 and 719 of the Financial Services and General
Government (FSGG) bill?
Ms. Lecompte stated that she looks to the Office of the General Counsel to
identify any legal concerns. OGC is a critical part of our content review process
for this reason.
Does the Department of Treasury have a process for reviewing and preventing
violations of 18 U.S.C. 1913 and sections 716 and 719?
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Ms. LeCompte said that the Office of Public Affairs looks to the Office of the
General Counsel to identify any legal concerns. In this case, she said that the
"Penny Wise" infographic was shared with OGC for review.
Mr. Gerety, the DAS responsible for the operation of FSOC, said that in the over
3 years he's worked at Treasury, he's received repeated guidance, through
exposure to OGC's in-person and written ethics and standards of conduct
training, and in discussions with legislative Affairs and OGC personnel on the
rules of engagement regarding advocacy to and about Congress and legislation,
in particular advice on what actions are allowed, and which are not, regarding
contacts with Members, staff, and other entities. He characterized the level of
guidance provided as "culturally ingrained:
Lastly, Mr. Fitzpayne said that there is not a formal process, but that he and his
shop are well aware of the applicable law and its limitation on advocacy and
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Ms. Lecompte stated that this is not Public Affairs's responsibility. Mr.
Fitzpayne, however, stated that it )§.the responsibility of Public Affairs.
What was the purpose of the July 16 tweet, Facebook post, and blog post?
Ms. Lecompte stated that Public Affairs published this infographic as part of a
broader outreach effort centered around the second anniversary of the
enactment of the Dodd-Frank Act The emphasis was on educating the public on
the need and value of adequate support for the Act's implementation and
enforcement, including adequate funding for agencies with responsibilities in that
area.
Both Mr. Fitzpayne, and Mr. Gerety of the FSOC office agreed that this was the
purpose.
Was the purpose accomplished?
Ms. Lecompte stated that she believes rt was a successful communications
endeavor. Openness, transparency and public dialogue are all important on
these matters and promoting those objectives is in and of itself a success for
good government.
Both Mr. Fitzpayne and Mr. Gerety agreed with this assessment.
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If so, what performance measures does the Department have to evaluate
communications?
Ms. Lecompte said that Public Affairs does not have a formal system of
measures as this is not an area of clear science. She said, however, that media
pick up of these postings, and that her office uses Google Analytics and other
data to track hits or views on various social media platforms, which does help in
evaluating the reach achieved around any particular communication.
Was the purpose to communicate with Congressional Members and Committees?
Ms. Lecompte said that public outreach is designed to communicate the
Department's concerns and goals to as many people and groups as possible, to
enhance citizen awareness and advance the ideas that the Administration thinks
are important.
Mr. Fitzpayne, in
Congress is part of

of Legislative Affairs, said that communication with
goal of communicating to a broad audience.

If so, was it designed, directly or indirectly, to influence how Members would consider
bills introduced by the House Committee on Appropriations?
Ms. Lecompte said that "Penny Wise" was published to make clear what the
Department and the Administration believe and want to achieve. She specifically
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the Administration's policies and priorities. She said that it was also meant to
communicate the views of the Secretary as chair of the FSOC.
Mr. Fitzpayne thought it was to convey the views of the Treasury Department as
an entity. Mr. Gerety, the official most closely involved in administering FSOC,
stated firmly that FSOC as a separate body did not request or authorize "Penny
Wise." But in his view it did advance the Administration's goal of getting support
for the implementation and effectiveness of Dodd-Frank.
If either of the latter, did the Department consider that any communication using
Treasury's letterhead and agency symbol would be construed as the Department's
views?
Ms. Lecompte agreed that this was the intent.
Did the Department coordinate with or seek assistance from either the SEC or CFTC in
the preparation or release of the tweet or posts?
Ms. Lecompte said that her office fact checked the content of "Penny Wise" with
the public affairs offices at both the SEC and the CFTC, and they incorporated
the feedback received. She said that neither agency raised any concerns with
Treasury's plans to publish the content.
How much of the Department of Treasury's Office of Public Affair's resources, both in
terms of dollars and staff, are used for new media?
Ms. Lecompte staled that the Office of Public Affairs devotes one GS-9 FTE to
new media.
Does the Office contract with public relations or public affairs firms for new or traditional
media?
Ms. Lecompte said that there is no contracting done.
Does the Office train its staff to recognize and avoid violations of 18 U.S.C. 1913 and
sections 716 and 719?
Ms. Lecompte said that OGC provides ethics training to all Treasury staff,
including those in Public Affairs. As she said previously, she looks to the Office of
the General Counsel to ensure content is compliant with all laws and ethics
policies.
If so, were policies and procedures followed in this instance?
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DISCUSSION
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Ms. Lecompte stated her opinion that they were.
Brian Sonfield, the Deputy Assistant
procedure as follows:

1) GLER does, in fact, memorialize its vetting process with regard to Public
Affairs clearance items, in that it is GLER's practice to respond to such clearance
items by email.
2) That said, GLER doesn't have a formal log-in/log-out system for these types of
items GLER does have a log-in/log-out system, but that system is used for longterm attorney work assignments, or for more complex items in which we want to
keep track of GLER's work product for historical purposes. The GLER log-in/logout system generally is not used for fairly routine items that are resolved on the
same day that they are received.
3) GLER does not keep track of clearance items that are sent to other OGG
offices, such as items with respect to which B&F has been asked to clear.
When I asked whether there was an issue with another OGG division doing the vetting
lo assure compliance with the anti-lobbying provisions, Mr. Sonfield assured me that
The anti-lobbying principles embodied in Section 716 and elsewhere are pretty
simple, and my impression is that attorneys in the other AGG offices are familiar
enough with these principles that they can spot issues when they arise. In
addition, my understanding is that the employees in the Public Affairs shop are
also familiar with these anti-lobbying principles, so it wouldn't be necessary for
every blog or posting to be sent to GLER
Whether this is the best answer or practice across the board, I think it's true in this
particular matter involving the "Penny Wise" outreach. The OGG 2009 guidance is
consistent with DOJ OLG's consistent interpretations of what the law does and does not
allow to be done with appropriated funds in the area of public outreach and
communication of agency goals and positions. What OLG calls "grass roots" lobbying specifically calling for people to write and call their representatives regarding their
positions and votes on particular bills - is clearly not what the Department was doing in
its "Penny Wise" outreach in mid-July. For that reason, I do not see that the
Department misused appropriated funds, or came close to violating 19 U.S.G. section
1913, or Sections 7161719 of the FY 2012 Appropriations Act
That being said, the confidence that the assistant and deputy assistant secretaries
expressed about OGG's guidance and vetting process seems to assume a more formal
and inclusive review process than actually appears to exist. The review that was
conducted here did the job there was no violation - but it might not be sufficient for
more complex, close, or subtle situations.

